TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY

A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
SDLF Gold-Level of Governance

President — Bill Mayer ¢ Vice-President — Bill Pease ¢ Director — Kevin Graves ¢ Director — Robert Leete ¢ Director — Bryon Gutow

NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING

OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY

WEDNESDAY, February 20, 2019

STANDING PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE REGULAR
MEETING 3:30 P.M.

Community Center

1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, California
Website address: www.todb.ca.gov

Parks and Recreation Committee Board Members
Kevin Graves
Bryon Gutow

A. ROLL CALL
1. Call business meeting to order 3:30 P.M.
2. Roll Call.

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit)

During Public Comments, the public may address the Committee on any issue within the District’s jurisdiction
which is not on the Agenda. The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time the item is
before the Committee for consideration by filling out a comment form. The public will be called to comment in
the order the comment forms are received. Any person wishing to speak will have 3 minutes to make their
comment. There will be no dialog between the Committee and the commenter as the law strictly limits the
ability of Committee members to discuss matters not on the agenda. We ask that you refrain from personal
attacks during comment, and that you address all comments to the Committee only. Any clarifying questions
from the Committee must go through the Chair. Comments from the public do not necessarily reflect the
view point of the Committee members.

C. DRAFT MINUTES TO BE APPROVED
1. December 19, 2018 Parks and Recreation DRAFT meeting minutes.

D. DISCUSSION ITEMS

Discussion Regarding Chair and Vice-Chair.

Discussion Regarding 2019 Parks and Recreation Public Event Calendar.

Discussion Regarding the 2019 Program, Activities, and Event Fee Waivers.

Discussion Regarding the DRAFT Administrative Revisions to both the Facility and Parks Rental Fee
Schedules.

Discussion Regarding Attendance at the CPRS State Conference.

Discussion Regarding the River Otters Contract Update.

Discussion Regarding the Paws on Parade Event Update.

Discussion Regarding the Terracon Report on Pool Expansion Site Assessment and Geotech Report.

PwnNPE

©No U

E. EUTURE DISCUSSION/AGENDA ITEMS

F. ADJOURNMENT
1. Adjourn to the next Standing Parks and Recreation Committee meeting at the Community Center
located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.

“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the American
with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code 8§ 54954.2). Persons
requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact the Town of
Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.”

"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the agenda packet are
available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during normal business hours."

Town of Discovery Bay
Standing Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting
Agenda for February 20, 2019 - Pg.1


http://www.todb.ca.gov/

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY §

A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

SDLF Gold-Level of Governance
President — Kevin Graves ¢ Vice-President — Bill Mayer * Director — Bill Pease ¢ Director — Robert Leete ¢ Director — Bryon Gutow

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING

OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY

WEDNESDAY, December 19, 2018

STANDING PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE REGULAR
MEETING 3:30 P.M.

Community Center

1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, California
Website address: www.todb.ca.gov

Parks and Recreation Committee Board Members
Chair Bill Pease
Vice-Chair Chris Steele

A. ROLL CALL
1. Call business meeting to order 3:30 P.M. — By Chair Pease.
2. Roll Call — All Present.

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit)
None.

C. DRAFT MINUTES TO BE APPROVED
1. October 17, 2018 Parks and Recreation DRAFT meeting minutes — Approved.

D. DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Update on the Lighting and Landscape Zone Strategies.
General Manager Davies — Provided an update regarding the Lighting and Landscape zone strategies.
Dennis Klingelhofer and Rick Clark Harris & Associates — Provided a handout and the details regarding zone
strategies related to key issues, assessments, and revenues, along with the 3 options;

e Option 1 — Form New TODB LMD to Replace CCC LMD

e  Option 2 — Overlay LMD for Community Center and Parks

e Option 3 — Form New LMD for Zone 8
There was discussion regarding the current property taxes, the options, revenues, assessment districts, and
the different zone strategies.
Dennis Klingelhofer and Rick Clark Harris & Associates — Provided other details regarding outreach to the
residents, community outreach, online survey, and the timeframe for the financial needs analysis (1% or 2™
week in January). The discussion continued regarding the zone strategies, a study session with the full
Board, and the figures for the District formation process.
2. Discussion Regarding Updates to the Park Rules and Regulations Policy 012.
Recreation Programs Supervisor Kaiser — Provided update regarding the Park Rules and Regulation Policy
012. There was discussion regarding the updated Parks Rules and Regulations Policy 012. The
recommendation from the Parks and Recreation Committee to the Board is to approve Park Rules and
Regulations Policy 012.
3. Discussion Regarding New and Updated Park and Recreation Forms.
Recreation Programs Supervisor Kaiser — Provided an update regarding the Park and Recreation forms.
There was discussion regarding the forms.

Town of Discovery Bay
Standing Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting
Minutes for December 19, 2018 - Pg.1 Agenda ltem C-1


http://www.todb.ca.gov/

4. Discussion Regarding a Bob Abbadie Memorial Dedication.

Recreation Programs Supervisor Kaiser — Provided an update regarding the Bob Abbadie memorial
dedication. There was discussion regarding the plaque for Bob Abbadie. The recommendation from the
Parks and Recreation Committee to the Board is to approve a plaque in memory of Bob Abbadie at a future
Board meeting.

5. Discussion Regarding Front Entrance Lighting and Landscaping.

Parks and Landscape Manager Miller — Provided an update regarding the front entrance lighting and
landscaping. There was discussion regarding the different kinds of lighting and the timeframe to bring the
item back to the Committee (next Parks and Recreation meeting)

E. EUTURE DISCUSSION/AGENDA ITEMS
Front Entrance Lighting and Landscaping.

F. ADJOURNMENT
1. The meeting adjourned at 4:50 p.m. to the next Standing Parks and Recreation Committee meeting at
the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.

/lcmc — 12-20-18
http://www.todb.ca.gov/agendas-minutes

Town of Discovery Bay
Standing Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting
Minutes for December 19, 2018 - Pg.2 Agenda ltem C-1


http://www.todb.ca.gov/agendas-minutes

Town of Discovery Bay
“A Community Services District”

PARKS AND RECREATION
STAFF REPORT

Meeting Date

February 20, 2019

Prepared By:  Mac Kaiser, Recreation Programs Supervisor
Submitted By: Michael R. Davies, General Manager

Agenda Title

2019 Parks and Recreation Public Event Calendar.

Recommended Action

Board Approve Parks and Recreation Public Event Calendar for 2019.

Executive Summary

2019 represents the 6" full year of event programming at the Community Center and the 7" full year of summer
programming. The Community Center continues to offer a variety of programming for all age groups, not only at the
Community Center itself, but also at other Town facilities.

The Community Center continues to develop as a hub of activity and staff continues to offer or partner with various
community groups to provide a variety of free as well as paid programming throughout the year. There also continues to
be a variety of private parties that occur year-round including birthdays, family reunions, and many others that schedule
the Center for their events.

Staff has developed the attached event schedule for Board consideration. The events listed are those which have been
held in the past, as well as new ones for 2019 for a total of 19 events. If the schedule is approved, these events will not
come back before the Board for further authorization. Once each date and event type is accepted by the Board, Staff
will then block those times and provide the event sponsor approval to proceed with their event planning.

All other events are subject to the terms and conditions in the Park Usage Rental Policy (Policy #013) and District
Recreation Facilities Alcohol Policy (Policy #022). Both Policies are attached.

Fiscal Impact:

Amount Requested $ N/A
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: (If no, see attached fiscal analysis)
Prog/Fund # Category: Pers. Optg. Cap. -or- CIP#  Fund#

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Iltem

N/A

Attachments

Proposed 2019 Parks and Recreation Public Event Calendar.
Board Policies #013 and #022.

AGENDA ITEM: D-2



Cinderella
Stamp


2019 Parks and Recreation Public Event Calendar

Approximate

2019 Event
Times Location Event Title Event Description Attendance

Dates

Event Vendors Food on Alcohol Town/County Licenses

Fees Charged/Waived
Sponsors  on site site on site Required ged/

Numbers

Cornell . . Brentwood - .
March 2 9-4PM Park Pony Jamboree Pony Seaonal Opening Scrimmage Games 100+ Pony No No No TODB Facility Permit Fees Charged

April 20 8-12PM DBCC Easter Egg Hunt DB Lions Club Easter Egg Hunt 500+ DB Lions Club No No No TODB Facility Permit Fees Waived
SAM Town & DB TOBD Facility Permit Fees Waived/Lions to donate net
April 27 DBCC Pet's on Parade Family friendly event for dogs 100-200 Lions Joint Yes No No v proceeds back for dog park

12PM CCC Health permit

Event specific improvements

TODB Facility Permit CCC

Family friendly event. "Off the Grid" style Discovery Bay K
3:00- . . ) Health permit ABC
May 8 DBCC Food Truck Round-Up  event featuring a variety of unique/gourment 200-400 Chamber of Yes Yes Yes R Fees Charged
9:00PM ) ) | License ECCFPD Event
dinner trucks, live music and vendor booths. Commerce .
Permit
Cornell Fund Raising Pickleball Pickleball Tournament to raise funding for Discovery Bay
May 8AM-4PM 8 ! , 8 75-150 Pickleball No No No TODB Facility Permit Fees Waived
Park Tournament Tennis Court converstion Club
u
. _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
. Family friendly event featuring live music, Town & DB TODB Facility Permit CCC Fees Waived/Lions to donate 50%
8AM- Summer Jam Concert in | A ) K ) 3
Junel 11PM DBCC the Park food and alcohol in partnership with the DB 500-1,000 Lions Joint Yes Yes Yes Health Permit ABC of net proceeds back to Town for
Lions Club. Event License specific Park/Facility project
TODB Facility Permit CCC
3:00 Family friendly event. "Off the Grid" style Discovery Bay Health erm:: ABC
June 12 : DBCC Food Truck Round-Up  event featuring a variety of unique/gourment 200-400 Chamber of Yes Yes Yes R P Fees Charged
9:00PM . . N License ECCFPD Event
dinner trucks, live music and vendor booths. Commerce .
Permit
June 14 6:30- DBCC Friday Night Movie in the  Family friendly movies ?n the event lawn at 50-75 Town Event No Yes No Cccc Healt'h Peltmit Movie N/A Town Event
10:30PM Park the Community Center Licensing
June 21 7PM- DBCC Friday Night Movie in the Family friendly evening swim and music 50-75 Town Event No No No TODB Facility Permit N/A Town Event
10PM Park under the stars
3:00PM- Family friend! t with a f T & CCC
June 26 DBCC Library Program amily r_|en v even w! atocuson 30-75 ow_n No No No TODB Facility Permit Fees Waived
6:00PM childrens entertainment Library
TODB Facility Permit CCC
3:00 Family friendly event. "Off the Grid" style Discovery Bay Health a:nlq\: erm ABC
:00- i
July 10 DBCC Food Truck Round-Up  event featuring a variety of unique/gourment 200-400 Chamber of Yes Yes Yes . P Fees Charged
9:00PM ) ) A License ECCFPD Event
dinner trucks, live music and vendor booths. Commerce )
Permit
July 6:30- DBCC Friday Night Movie in the Family friendly movies ?n the event lawn at 50-75 Town Event No Yes No ccc Healt'h Per.mlt Movie N/A Town Event
10:30PM Park the Community Center Licensing

Agenda ltem D-2



2019 Parks and Recreation Public Event Calendar

Approximate
Times Location Event Title Event Description Attendance
Numbers

2019 Event
Dates

Event Vendors Food on Alcohol Town/County Licenses

Fees Charged/Waived
Sponsors  on site site on site Required ged/

This is a free Contra Costa County
8:30- iff' i -
July 15-19 DBCC RA.D. Program Sheriff's program for ch||dren.ages 5-7
years that provides education on

3:30PM 20-40 CCC Sheriff No No No TODB Facility Permit Fees Waived
personal safetv.

August 6:30- DBCC Friday Night Movie in the  Family friendly movies ?n the event lawn at 50.75 Town Event No Yes No Cccc Healt'h Peltmlt Movie N/A Town Event
10:30PM Park the Community Center Licensing

TODB Facility Permit
Classic, Hot Rod, Motorcycle Car show, ¥

September 8AM-8PM  DBCC Car Show 300-400 DB Lions Yes Yes Yes CCC Health Permit Fees Charged
food/beer, and vendors X
ABC License
September 3:00AM - Kids zone, possible car show, business} A TPDB FacilitY Permit CC(‘Z
21 3:00PM DBCC Summer Jam vendors, food vendors, concert and petting 500-1,000 DB Lions Yes Yes Yes Health Permit ABC Permit N/A Town Event
’ zoo. Alcohol Sales ECCFPD

Discovery Bay

Il F Raising Pickleball Pickleball Tt ise funding f
October 8AM-4PM Corne und Raising Pickleba ickleba ou'rnament to ralse' unding for 75-100 Pickleball No No No TODB Facility Permit Fees Waived
Park Tournament Tennis Court converstion Club
3:00PM- Family friend| t with a f T & CCC
October 23 DBCC Library Program amily rllen v even w{ afocuson 30-50 ow,n No No No TODB Facility Permit Fees Waived
6:00PM childrens entertainment Library
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Delta Sun
Times/DB
. . . ) TODB Facility Permit CCC . .
December T80 DBCC Holiday Pa-rade & Judging, BreakfastAwnh Santa, v?ndors for 1000+ Lions/ Yes Yes No Health Permit ECCEPD Fees Waived for use of parking lot
Breakfast with Santa event located in the CC parking lot Chamber of ) only
Event Permit
Commerce
Joint Event

Agenda ltem D-2



Town of Discovery Bay

Program Area: Policy Name: Policy Number:

Parks and Landscaping Park & Facility Usage & Rental 013
Policy

Date Established: Date Amended: Resolution:
April 20, 2011 May 3, 2017 2016-17

. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Park & Facility Usage and Rental Policy outlines specific regulations and requirements associated
with the permitted rental of a public facility and/or area within the Town of Discovery Bay Community
Services District (District) owned or operated park. Obtaining a permit shall grant the user basic usage
and access rights for the approved purpose and time only. Any fees or deposits established by the
District Board of Directors shall be paid by the applicant prior to the approval of the permit. All users
shall comply with County, State and Federal laws.

The District reserves the right to cancel, revoke or suspend any and all reservations, permits and
applications if deemed inappropriate, flagrantly disrespectful or if harmful activities are taking place in
the park or facility. No notice is required and, in some cases, the Sheriff will be notified and
enforcement action will be requested. Violations of this policy may result is forfeiture of fees and/ or
deposit.

Facilities and parks available for rental include:

Cornell Park, Tennis Court

Cornell Park, Pickle Ball Courts

Cornell Park, Baseball Field

Cornell Park, Soccer Field

Cornell Park, Shaded Picnic Area

Cornell Park, Horse Shoe Pits or Bocce Courts
Ravenswood Park, Covered Picnic Area 1
Ravenswood Park, Covered Picnic Area 2
Ravenswood Park, Soccer Field

Community Center, Tennis Court(s)
Community Center, BBQ Area

Community Center, Reception Area
Community Center, Arts and Crafts/Meeting Room
Community Center, Multi-Purpose Room
Community Center, Event lawn

Community Center, Swimming Pool

L oOoNOURAWNRE

PR R R PR R
ok wnNEO

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District
Park Usage & Rental Policy, Revised 05/03/2017
Adopted — 04-20-2011

Agenda ltem D-2



1. ELIGIBILITY & PRIORITY

The District reserves the right to exclude or remove activities it deems inappropriate for public use.
District business will take precedence over any and all other meetings. Groups that have a reservation
in advance are subject to cancellations, in rare circumstances, to accommodate this priority. All fees will
be returned to the user if the District requires a cancellation or relocation of the reserved event.

In issuing permits, priority shall be given to Discovery Bay residents and events serving the Discovery Bay
community.

lil. RESERVATION REQUIREMENTS

The renter must be over 18 years of age, and submit a complete Reservation Form to the Community
Center, a refundable damage deposit, and all applicable user fees and insurance as described in
Insurance Requirements. Renters are required to provide the name and phone number of the principal
contact person and a secondary contact. This person must be present onsite during the approved rental
period and will be the emergency contact, and is responsible for ensuring compliance with the policies
outlined. A copy of the permit must be onsite and available upon request by District staff or
representatives during approved rental period.

Single day reservation may be made up to one (1) year in advance. Long-term league reservations may
be made up to four (4) months in advance, unless previously approved by the Town of Discovery Bay
CSD Board of Directors.

No reservation or agreement will be approved or signed until the requesting user has paid the applicable
deposits and fees.

Insurance Requirements: All sports leagues, organizations, or inflatable play equipment operators are
required to provide the District with a CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE showing valid liability
coverage in the amount of $1,000,000. A separate ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT must be
submitted listing the “Town of Discovery Bay CSD, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers” as
additional insured on the policy. Insurance Certificates must be submitted to the District at least five (5)
days prior to the scheduled reservation.

Cancellations: Park Rental cancellations occurring five (5) business days or more prior to the event will
be refunded all fees and deposits. Cancellations occurring four (4) business days or less prior to the
event will forfeit all applicable fees but be refunded all of the deposit.

Cancellation for Indoor Facility Rentals at the Community Center occurring sixty (60) days or more prior
to the event will be refunded all fees and deposits. Cancellations less than sixty (60) days, but more
than thirty (30) days prior to the event date will forfeit 25% of the total fees. Cancellations less than
thirty (30) days prior to the event date, but more than fifteen (15) days prior to the event date will
forfeit 50% of the total fees. Cancellations occurring less than fifteen (15) days prior to the event date
will forfeit all applicable fees. In all cases of cancellation, the deposit shall be returned.

Cancellation fees above do not reflect any cancellation processing fees. Processing fees are in addition
to the cancellation fees described here.

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District
Park Usage & Rental Policy, Revised 05/03/2017
Adopted — 04-20-2011

Agenda ltem D-2



Clean Up: Renters are required to clean up and return the park or area to the original condition. Trash
must be placed in the receptacles provided. Trash that does not fit in the trash receptacle must be
disposed of properly by the renter.

Reasonable party decorations are permitted. However, users may not put staples or nails into any tree,
sign, wall or table for any purpose. All decorations must be taken down and removed from the facility.

Deposit Forfeiture: Renter agrees to take full responsibility for the behavior of their guests during the
rental period. Children must be supervised at all times by adults. Any charges for damage to the park or
facility or its furnishings will be deducted from the deposit. Rentals that exceed the reserved time
period will be charged the hourly rate to be deducted from the deposit. Failure to leave the rented area
in satisfactory condition will result in deposit forfeiture. Upon a satisfactory inspection of the premises
by District staff, the deposit check will be destroyed or returned to the applicant.

Prohibited Activities: No person shall consume, possess, sell, serve or cause to be served, any alcoholic
beverage of any kind within any park area, unless expressly authorized in advance of the event by the
Board of Directors. The General Manager, or designee, is authorized to approve service of alcoholic
beverages for private events taking place at the Discovery Bay Community Center once a complete and
approved application is received and all insurance requirements and other conditions of approval are
approved. See Special Conditions regarding the serving and or/sale of Alcoholic beverages, below. Fires
and barbecues (BBQ) shall be permitted only in grills already provided in the park. There shall be no
overnight events or camping at any Discovery Bay park facility unless expressly authorized in advance of
the event by the Board of Directors.

Gambling activities are expressly prohibited at all Town of Discovery Bay Parks and Recreation facilities.
Individuals or groups of individuals in violation of this prohibited activity shall immediately cease the
prohibited activity. Failure to cease shall result in the immediate notification of local law enforcement
authorities.

Renter agrees that they will comply with all state and local laws including but not limited to activities
that require a state or local permit. At the discretion of the General Manager, or designee, security may
be required on a case by case basis.

Special Conditions regarding the serving and or/sale of Alcoholic beverages:

If alcohol is to be served or sold, it must be indicated on the rental application. The General Manager or
Board of Directors, as identified above, must approve any application which includes consumption or
sale of alcohol. Once approved, it is the responsibility and liability of the Renter and/or organization
renting the facility. At the discretion of the General Manager, or designee, security may be required on a
case by case basis.

To sell alcoholic beverages at your event, a valid alcohol permit from the California Department of
Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (A.B.C.) must be obtained. The permit must be on file with the District
offices at least ten (10) days prior to your event.

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District
Park Usage & Rental Policy, Revised 05/03/2017
Adopted — 04-20-2011

Agenda ltem D-2



Food and Alcohol may be consumed without an Alcohol permit from the A.B.C. when there is no
monetary exchange for the food, beverages or admission charged for the event.

Violation of any of these requirements will result in immediate termination of Renter’s event and will
result in forfeiture of the damage deposit.

The District may require additional deposits, insurance and/or security for events where alcohol is
served. These additional requirements will be determined by the circumstances of each rental request.

Food Preparation: Food and non-alcoholic beverages may be served, but not prepared on site for any
indoor facility rentals at the Community Center.

Exhibitions, Events, Festivals, Meeting and Assemblies: Any person, group, society, club or
organization wishing to set up or maintain any exhibition, place of amusement, concert, picture show,
bandstand, performance, entertainment or other form of amusement or function where the expected
attendance is fifty (50) people or more occupying the park at any one time, must first obtain written
authorization from the District’s General Manager. These types of requests must be submitted no less
than sixty (60) days prior to the event.

\"A MISCELLANEOUS
Any policy listed herein may be waived or modified on a case-by-case basis and at the discretion of the
Board of Directors.

Requirements listed herein, except those identified as “prohibited”, may be waived or modified on a
case-by-case basis by the General Manager, or designee, upon the finding of public interest; any such
modification (including modification to fees) shall be summarized on the next available board agenda.

Policy Established:
April 20, 2011
Policy Amended:

July 16, 2013
January §, 2014
December 16, 2015
October 19, 2016
May 3, 2017

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District
Park Usage & Rental Policy, Revised 05/03/2017
Adopted — 04-20-2011

Agenda ltem D-2



Town of Discovery Bay

Program Area: Policy Name: Policy Number:
Parks & Recreation Alcohol Policy 022

Date Established: Date Amended: Resolution:
September 3, 2014 N/A 2014-21

POLICY STATEMENT

The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District supports the ability to allow renters of District
facilities the ability to host private parties and to serve or consume alcohol during facility rentals when it
is determined by staff to be feasible and age appropriate. This policy provides the framework to guide
renters in the process to be able to serve or consume alcohol for private parties and events. The Policy
outlines the procedural structure that adjusts to the different types of facility rentals based on the number
of planned attendees. Management within the District must determine the appropriateness for alcohol
consumption during all potential rentals to maintain consistency with this policy.

APPLICATION, AGREEMENT, & SPECIAL ALCOHOL PERMIT

Each potential renter that would like to serve or consume alcohol during a facility rental must fill out the
appropriate application and agreement as well as the special alcohol permit. The rental applicant must
also meet all guidelines listed in the agreement. The District reserves the right to accept or reject an
individual or group’s offer to serve or consume alcohol. It is strictly prohibited to sell or barter alcohol,
and will be cause for immediate revocation of the permit and the cancellation of the event.

SPECIAL ALCOHOL PERMIT QUALIFICATIONS

e Ade - Any person seeking to rent a District facility who intends on serving or consuming alcohol
must be 21 years of age with a valid ID, and anyone who wishes to serve or consume alcohol
during the rental must be 21 years of age and have a valid ID. Special Alcohol permits will not be
issued if the guest of honor is a minor or if the majority of the attendees are minors.

o Applications & Fees - All applicants must fill out a rental application for the facility they would like
to rent. All rental fees and deposits must be paid in full prior to the event. The Special Alcohol
permit must be filled out completely and submitted at least (2) weeks prior to the rental. The
alcohol permit fee for the Special Alcohol Permit is based on the number of attendees who will
be present during the rental period.

1-50  Attendees - $50
51-100 Attendees - $75
100+ Attendees - $100

e Insurance - Applicants are required to provide a certificate of insurance that names the Town of
Discover Bay as an additional insured providing general liability insurance in and amount of not
less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence and $1,000,000 general aggregate. The Town of
Discovery Bay may be able to obtain a certificate of insurance for the event at the expense of
the applicant.

Town of Discovery Bay CSD
Alcohol Policy, September 3, 2014

Agenda ltem D-2



DETERMINING AND APPROVAL — SPECIAL ALCOHOL PERMIT

Once the District has received a Special Alcohol permit application, the Department Manager will review
the permit and make sure that all qualifications have been met. Completed forms will be reviewed for
approval by the General Manager, or designee, prior to issuance of a Special Alcohol Permit.

EACILITIES

The following are the District facilities at which serving or consumption of alcohol may be approved
during facility rentals with the required permits and fees

Indoor Facilities
Discovery Bay Community Center’s Cabrillo Room
Discovery Bay Community Center’'s Marina Room
Discovery Bay Community Center’s Discovery Room

Outdoor Facilities
Discovery Bay Community Center’s Event Lawn
Discovery Bay Community Center's BBQ Area

RULES AND REGULATIONS

1. A District facility attendant will be present for rentals with 50+ attendees. An added fee of
$15.00/hour or partial will be assessed prior to the event based upon the anticipated timeframes.
Any additional expenses shall be paid in full at the conclusion of the event or may be deducted
from the security deposit .

2. All guests who will be served alcohol must be at least 21 years old and be able to provide a valid
ID. Guests who cannot provide a valid ID will be acknowledged as a minor. There are No
Exceptions.

3. Alcohol service includes beer, wine, & champagne. Liquor and other distilled spirits are
prohibited (Glass beer bottles are prohibited).

4. Alcohol may only be brought in by the person or organization responsible for the rental or a
licensed caterer. Guests may not bring their own beverages to the event. Non-Compliance may
result in the cancellation of the event at the discretion of Town staff.

5. Alcohol is not to be consumed outside of the rental area(s), and shall not be consumed in entry
ways or parking lots.

6. All rentals that request alcohol must have a certificate of insurance that names Town of
Discovery Bay as an additional insured, as described above.

7. Alcohol will not be permitted when the guest of honor is a minor, or when a majority of the
attendees are minors.

8. Alcohol service must stop (30) minutes before the designated end time of the rental.

9. There may be additional requirements for rentals with more than (50) attendees including but not
limited to necessity of security, at the discretion of Town staff.

10. Alcohol service or consumption that has not been approved or fails to comply with all
requirements of the agreement will result in termination of rental, and forfeiture of rental deposit.

11. The event host is responsible to fulfill all requirements of the agreement. The District is not
responsible for any loss of the rental expense due to the requirements not being met.

Town of Discovery Bay CSD
Alcohol Policy, September 3, 2014

Agenda ltem D-2



Town of Discovery Bay
“A Community Services District”

PARKS AND RECREATION
STAFF REPORT

Meeting Date

February 20, 2019

Prepared By: Mac Kaiser, Recreation Programs Supervisor
Submitted By: Michael R Davies, General Manager

Agenda Title

2019 Program, Activities, and Event Fee Waivers.

Recommended Action

Board Acceptance of Fees Waivers approved by the General Manager for the following 2019 Program, Activities, and
Events.

Executive Summary

The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board of Directors (Board) established the Park & Facility
Usage and Rental Policy #13 on July 16, 2013; and

Whereas the Park & Facility Usage and Rental Policy was revised on October 19, 2016 to more adequately respond to
the needs of the community; and

Whereas requirements, except those identified as “prohibited”, may now be waived or modified on a case-by-case basis
by the General Manager, or designee upon the finding of public interest; and any such modification (including
modification to fees) shall be summarized on the next available board agenda.

Therefore, Staff is submitting for acceptance the following 2019 Programs, Activities, and Events whose “Fees” were
waived by the General Manager upon the finding of public interest per the Park & Facility Usage and Rental Policy #13.

“Bridge on the Lake” Senior Duplicate Bridge games held every Saturday throughout the year at the Discovery Bay
Community Center from 12PM to 4:30PM for a fee waiver total amount of $8,190. Effective July 2017, the Town entered
into a Memorandum of Understanding with the “Bridge on the Lake” duplicate bridge participants, requiring a fee of $1
per person/per week in an effort to offset this direct cost to the Town. For calendar year 2018 the Town recovered a total
of $1,024 from the “Bridge on the Lake” group that reduced the actual total fee waiver in 2018 to $7,166.

“‘Hand and Foot” Senior Duplicate Bridge games held every Wednesday throughout the year at the Discovery Bay
Community Center from 12PM to 4PM for a fee waiver total amount of $5,200.

“Boy Scouts of America Troop 514” weekly Monday meetings held throughout the year at the Discovery Bay Community
Center from 6:30PM to 8PM for a fee total waiver amount of $1,750. The Boy Scouts Troop 514 annually provides an
agreed upon in-kind service project for the Town.

The “Discovery Bay Garden Club” will host a free Community Workshop on the Blue-Green Algae issue that has
impacted the Discovery Bay Community the past several years. This workshop will be featuring an Environmental Health
Specialist from Contra Costa County which is scheduled for April 12" from 11:30AM — 12:30PM at the Discovery Bay
Community Center. The fee waiver total amount is $30.

A Contra Costa County Library Program for children utilizing the Discovery Bay Community Center on a Wednesday
afternoon from 3PM-6PM once in June and once in October. The fee waiver total amount is $180

“Resisting Aggression Defensively (R.A.D.) Kids” is a Contra Costa County Sheriff's program to be held at the Discovery
Bay Community Center July 15-19 from 9AM to 4PM. This free community event for children ages 5-7 years, provides
safety topics that include; Home Safety, School Safety, Out and About Safety, Good and Bad Strangers, and What to do
in an emergency and then helping them understand how to react. This is a one-week program for a total fee waiver
amount of $875.

“Continued to the next page”



Cinderella
Stamp


“Annual Easter Egg Hunt” conducted by the Discovery Bay Lions Club scheduled for April 20 at the Discovery Bay
Community Center from 7AM to 12PM for a fee waiver total amount of $80.

“Holiday Day Parade” and “Breakfast with Santa” conducted by the Discovery Bay Chamber of Commerce and the
Discovery Bay Lions Club utilizing the parking lot in front of the Discovery Bay Community Center. There is currently no
fee schedule for the use of just the parking lot in front of the Discovery Bay Community Center.

Staff recommends acceptance of the above 2019 Programs, Activities, and Events Fee Waivers by the General
Managers for a total amount of $16,305

Fiscal Impact:

Amount Requested $ None
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?  (If no, see attached fiscal analysis)
Prog/Fund #  Category: Pers. Optg. Cap. -or- CIP#  Fund#

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item
None

Attachments

Parks & Facility Usage & Rental Policy.

AGENDA ITEM: D-3




Town of Discovery Bay

Program Area: Policy Name: Policy Number:

Parks and Landscaping Park & Facility Usage & Rental 013
Policy

Date Established: Date Amended: Resolution:
April 20, 2011 May 3, 2017 2016-17

. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Park & Facility Usage and Rental Policy outlines specific regulations and requirements associated
with the permitted rental of a public facility and/or area within the Town of Discovery Bay Community
Services District (District) owned or operated park. Obtaining a permit shall grant the user basic usage
and access rights for the approved purpose and time only. Any fees or deposits established by the
District Board of Directors shall be paid by the applicant prior to the approval of the permit. All users
shall comply with County, State and Federal laws.

The District reserves the right to cancel, revoke or suspend any and all reservations, permits and
applications if deemed inappropriate, flagrantly disrespectful or if harmful activities are taking place in
the park or facility. No notice is required and, in some cases, the Sheriff will be notified and
enforcement action will be requested. Violations of this policy may result is forfeiture of fees and/ or
deposit.

Facilities and parks available for rental include:

Cornell Park, Tennis Court

Cornell Park, Pickle Ball Courts

Cornell Park, Baseball Field

Cornell Park, Soccer Field

Cornell Park, Shaded Picnic Area

Cornell Park, Horse Shoe Pits or Bocce Courts
Ravenswood Park, Covered Picnic Area 1
Ravenswood Park, Covered Picnic Area 2
Ravenswood Park, Soccer Field

Community Center, Tennis Court(s)
Community Center, BBQ Area

Community Center, Reception Area
Community Center, Arts and Crafts/Meeting Room
Community Center, Multi-Purpose Room
Community Center, Event lawn

Community Center, Swimming Pool

L oOoNOURAWNRE

PR R R PR R
ok wnNEO

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District
Park Usage & Rental Policy, Revised 05/03/2017
Adopted — 04-20-2011

Agenda ltem D-3



1. ELIGIBILITY & PRIORITY

The District reserves the right to exclude or remove activities it deems inappropriate for public use.
District business will take precedence over any and all other meetings. Groups that have a reservation
in advance are subject to cancellations, in rare circumstances, to accommodate this priority. All fees will
be returned to the user if the District requires a cancellation or relocation of the reserved event.

In issuing permits, priority shall be given to Discovery Bay residents and events serving the Discovery Bay
community.

lil. RESERVATION REQUIREMENTS

The renter must be over 18 years of age, and submit a complete Reservation Form to the Community
Center, a refundable damage deposit, and all applicable user fees and insurance as described in
Insurance Requirements. Renters are required to provide the name and phone number of the principal
contact person and a secondary contact. This person must be present onsite during the approved rental
period and will be the emergency contact, and is responsible for ensuring compliance with the policies
outlined. A copy of the permit must be onsite and available upon request by District staff or
representatives during approved rental period.

Single day reservation may be made up to one (1) year in advance. Long-term league reservations may
be made up to four (4) months in advance, unless previously approved by the Town of Discovery Bay
CSD Board of Directors.

No reservation or agreement will be approved or signed until the requesting user has paid the applicable
deposits and fees.

Insurance Requirements: All sports leagues, organizations, or inflatable play equipment operators are
required to provide the District with a CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE showing valid liability
coverage in the amount of $1,000,000. A separate ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT must be
submitted listing the “Town of Discovery Bay CSD, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers” as
additional insured on the policy. Insurance Certificates must be submitted to the District at least five (5)
days prior to the scheduled reservation.

Cancellations: Park Rental cancellations occurring five (5) business days or more prior to the event will
be refunded all fees and deposits. Cancellations occurring four (4) business days or less prior to the
event will forfeit all applicable fees but be refunded all of the deposit.

Cancellation for Indoor Facility Rentals at the Community Center occurring sixty (60) days or more prior
to the event will be refunded all fees and deposits. Cancellations less than sixty (60) days, but more
than thirty (30) days prior to the event date will forfeit 25% of the total fees. Cancellations less than
thirty (30) days prior to the event date, but more than fifteen (15) days prior to the event date will
forfeit 50% of the total fees. Cancellations occurring less than fifteen (15) days prior to the event date
will forfeit all applicable fees. In all cases of cancellation, the deposit shall be returned.

Cancellation fees above do not reflect any cancellation processing fees. Processing fees are in addition
to the cancellation fees described here.

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District
Park Usage & Rental Policy, Revised 05/03/2017
Adopted — 04-20-2011

Agenda ltem D-3



Clean Up: Renters are required to clean up and return the park or area to the original condition. Trash
must be placed in the receptacles provided. Trash that does not fit in the trash receptacle must be
disposed of properly by the renter.

Reasonable party decorations are permitted. However, users may not put staples or nails into any tree,
sign, wall or table for any purpose. All decorations must be taken down and removed from the facility.

Deposit Forfeiture: Renter agrees to take full responsibility for the behavior of their guests during the
rental period. Children must be supervised at all times by adults. Any charges for damage to the park or
facility or its furnishings will be deducted from the deposit. Rentals that exceed the reserved time
period will be charged the hourly rate to be deducted from the deposit. Failure to leave the rented area
in satisfactory condition will result in deposit forfeiture. Upon a satisfactory inspection of the premises
by District staff, the deposit check will be destroyed or returned to the applicant.

Prohibited Activities: No person shall consume, possess, sell, serve or cause to be served, any alcoholic
beverage of any kind within any park area, unless expressly authorized in advance of the event by the
Board of Directors. The General Manager, or designee, is authorized to approve service of alcoholic
beverages for private events taking place at the Discovery Bay Community Center once a complete and
approved application is received and all insurance requirements and other conditions of approval are
approved. See Special Conditions regarding the serving and or/sale of Alcoholic beverages, below. Fires
and barbecues (BBQ) shall be permitted only in grills already provided in the park. There shall be no
overnight events or camping at any Discovery Bay park facility unless expressly authorized in advance of
the event by the Board of Directors.

Gambling activities are expressly prohibited at all Town of Discovery Bay Parks and Recreation facilities.
Individuals or groups of individuals in violation of this prohibited activity shall immediately cease the
prohibited activity. Failure to cease shall result in the immediate notification of local law enforcement
authorities.

Renter agrees that they will comply with all state and local laws including but not limited to activities
that require a state or local permit. At the discretion of the General Manager, or designee, security may
be required on a case by case basis.

Special Conditions regarding the serving and or/sale of Alcoholic beverages:

If alcohol is to be served or sold, it must be indicated on the rental application. The General Manager or
Board of Directors, as identified above, must approve any application which includes consumption or
sale of alcohol. Once approved, it is the responsibility and liability of the Renter and/or organization
renting the facility. At the discretion of the General Manager, or designee, security may be required on a
case by case basis.

To sell alcoholic beverages at your event, a valid alcohol permit from the California Department of
Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (A.B.C.) must be obtained. The permit must be on file with the District
offices at least ten (10) days prior to your event.

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District
Park Usage & Rental Policy, Revised 05/03/2017
Adopted — 04-20-2011

Agenda ltem D-3



Food and Alcohol may be consumed without an Alcohol permit from the A.B.C. when there is no
monetary exchange for the food, beverages or admission charged for the event.

Violation of any of these requirements will result in immediate termination of Renter’s event and will
result in forfeiture of the damage deposit.

The District may require additional deposits, insurance and/or security for events where alcohol is
served. These additional requirements will be determined by the circumstances of each rental request.

Food Preparation: Food and non-alcoholic beverages may be served, but not prepared on site for any
indoor facility rentals at the Community Center.

Exhibitions, Events, Festivals, Meeting and Assemblies: Any person, group, society, club or
organization wishing to set up or maintain any exhibition, place of amusement, concert, picture show,
bandstand, performance, entertainment or other form of amusement or function where the expected
attendance is fifty (50) people or more occupying the park at any one time, must first obtain written
authorization from the District’s General Manager. These types of requests must be submitted no less
than sixty (60) days prior to the event.

\"A MISCELLANEOUS
Any policy listed herein may be waived or modified on a case-by-case basis and at the discretion of the
Board of Directors.

Requirements listed herein, except those identified as “prohibited”, may be waived or modified on a
case-by-case basis by the General Manager, or designee, upon the finding of public interest; any such
modification (including modification to fees) shall be summarized on the next available board agenda.

Policy Established:
April 20, 2011
Policy Amended:

July 16, 2013
January §, 2014
December 16, 2015
October 19, 2016
May 3, 2017

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District
Park Usage & Rental Policy, Revised 05/03/2017
Adopted — 04-20-2011

Agenda ltem D-3



Town of Discovery Bay

“A Community Services District”

PARKS AND RECREATION
STAFF REPORT

Meeting Date

February 20, 2019

Prepared By: Mac Kaiser, Recreation Supervisor
Submitted By: Michael Davies, General Manager

Agenda Title:

Approval of DRAFT Administrative Revisions to both the Facility and Parks Rental Fee Schedules.

Recommended Action

Board Approve the DRAFT administrative revisions to both the Facility and Parks Rental Fee Schedules including; 1) the
removal of the discount for the reservation of multiple rooms or items at the Community Center; 2) updating the
definition of the term “Commercial”; 3) and eliminating the waiver of deposits on facilities reserved for less than three (3)
hours as recommended by the Standing Parks and Recreation Committee at the February 20, 2019 meeting.

Executive Summary

Annually, or as needed, staff has reviewed both the Facility and Park Rental Fee Schedule (Facility Rental Fee
Schedule — last revised 10/19/2016 and Parks Rental Fee Schedule — last revised 11/16/2016.)

Attached hereto, are the relevant sections of the Facility and Park Rental Fee Schedules, with Administrative revisions
including; 1) the removal of the discount for the reservation of multiple rooms or items at the Community Center; 2)
updating the definition of the term “Commercial”; 3) and eliminating the waiver of deposits on facilities reserved for less
than three (3) hours as recommended by staff.

The DRAFT revisions were reviewed and discussed at the February 20, 2019 Standing Park and Recreation Committee
meeting. The committee’s recommendation is for Board approval of the DRAFT revisions for the Facility and Park
Rental Fee Schedules.

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This ltem

Attachments

Facility Rental Fee Schedule; Parks Rental Fee Schedule.

AGENDA ITEM: D-4


Cinderella
Stamp


st V95

O,
LIFOR

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
FACILITY RENTAL FEE SCHEDULE

Indoor Facilities

Week Day (M-F)

Week End

2 Hour Minimum 2 Hour Minimum il
ComAn:tL;n};;\gfneg:er - Resident $25.00/Hour Resident $30.00/Hour
Multi-Puroose Room Non-Resident $35.00/Hour Non-Resident $40.00/Hour $250.00
p. Commercial $40.00/Hour Commercial $50.00/Hour
Capacity: 35
Community Center — Resident $120.00/Hour Resident $120.00/Hour
Swimming Pool Non-Resident $150.00/Hour Non-Resident $150.00/Hour $250.00
Up to 60 People Commercial $195.00/Hour Commerecial $195.00/Hour
Community Center — Resident $135.00/Hour Resident $135.00/Hour
Swimming Pool Non-Resident $165.00/Hour Non-Resident $165.00/Hour $250.00
60 - 140 People Commercial $210.00/Hour Commercial $210.00/Hour
Combo Facilities Week Day (M-F) Week End Deposit
2 Hour Minimum 2 Hour Minimum P
Entire Community Center Resident $80.00/Hour Resident $95.00/Hour
_ Indoor O:I Non-Resident $110.00/Hour Non-Resident $125.00/Hour S500
Y Commercial $130.00/Hour Commercial $160.00/Hour
Entire Community Center | Resident $100.00/Hour Resident $115.00/Hour
Indoor/Outdoor Non-Resident $140.00/Hour Non-Resident $155.00/Hour S500
NO POOL Commercial $170.00/Hour Commercial $200.00/Hour
Entire Community Center | Resident $220.00/Hour Resident $235.00/Hour
Indoor/Outdoor Non-Resident $290.00/Hour Non-Resident $305.00/Hour $500
plus, Pool (less than 60) Commercial $365.00/Hour Commercial $395.00/Hour
Entire Community Center | Resident $235.00/Hour Resident $250.00/Hour
Indoor/Outdoor Non-Resident $305.00/Hour Non-Resident $320.00/Hour S500
plus, Pool (60+) Commercial $380.00/Hour Commercial $410.00/Hour
Community Center Resident $20.00/Hour Resident $20.00/Hour
Event Lawn SYBBQ Area Non-Resident $30.00/Hour Non-Resident $30.00/Hour $250
Commercial $40.00/Hour Commercial $40.00/Hour
. Resident $10.00hr/S50 up to 6 hrs. | Resident $80.00
Community Center
Y Non-Resident $15.00hr/$75 up to 6 hrs. | Non-Resident $150.00 5250
Event Lawn
Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Page 1 of 2

Facility Rental Fee Schedule, Revised 12/19/2018

Agenda ltem D-4




TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
FACILITY RENTAL FEE SCHEDULE

Facilities Hourly/Half Day (6 hrs.) Daily (Operating hrs.) Deposit
] Resident $10.00hr/S50 up to 6 hrs. | Resident $80.00
Community Center Non-Resident $15.00hr/$75 up to 6 hrs. | Non-Resident $150.00 2250
BBQ Area
Community Center Resident $5.00hr/$25 up to 6 hrs. | Resident $50.00 $100
Tennis Courts Non-Resident $8.00hr/$40 up to 6 hrs. Non-Resident $75.00 (total rental)
(Individual Court Fees)

Long-term, or reoccurring rentals (more than 16 hours) will be considered only if space and schedule allow. Pricing and
terms will be negotiated by Staff, with final approval by General Manager.

All indoor Facility Rentals require a 2-hour minimum.

“Commercial” shall be defined as inelude those individuals and/or groups which operate trainings, lessons or games for

profit.

Swimming pool rentals are only available during non-recreational swim and/or aquatics programming hours.

Swimming pool rentals require a 2-hour minimum.

Town of Discovery Bay Lifeguards are required for pool rentals.

The General Manager may, on the finding that it is in public interest, waive part or the entire facility fee. Such a fee waiver

shall be summarized on the next available board agenda.

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District
Facility Rental Fee Schedule, Revised 12/19/2018

Page 2 of 2
Agenda ltem D-4




TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

PARKS RENTAL FEE SCHEDULLE

Park Area Hourly Half Day (6 Hour) Daily (Operating Hours) Deposit
Cornell Park — ; . ) . . .

. Resident: 5.00 Resident: 25.00 Resident: 50.00 *
EET(T;SB(;%U(?”?_JG Courts) Non-Resident: $8.00 Non-Resident: $40.00 Non-Resident: $75.00 55000
Cornell Park — Resident: $5.00 Resident: $25.00 Resident: $50.00
Baseball Field Non-Resident: $8.00 Non-Resident: $40.00 Non-Resident: $75.00 Sloooo
Cornell Park — Resident: $4.00 Resident: $20.00 Resident: $35.00
Soccer Field Non-Resident: $6.00 Non-Resident: $30.00 Non-Resident: $50.00 55000
Cornell Park — Resident: $10.00 Resident: $50.00 Resident: $80.00
Shaded Picnic Area Non-Resident: $15.00 Non-Resident: $75.00 Non-Resident: $150.00 55000
Cornell Park — Resident: $4.00 Resident: $20.00 Resident: $35.00
Bocce Ball Courts Non-Resident: $6.00 Non-Resident: $30.00 Non-Resident: $50.00 SSOOO*
Cornell Park — Resident: $4.00 Resident: $20.00 Resident: $35.00
Horse Shoe Pits Non-Resident: $6.00 Non-Resident: $30.00 Non-Resident: $50.00 SSOOO*
Ravenswood Park - . . ) . , .

. Resident: 6.00 Resident: 30.00 Resident: 60.00
Covered Picnic Tables Non-Resident: $9.00 Non-Resident: $45.00 Non-Resident: $90.00 $50.00
Area 1 or Area 2
Ravenswood Park — Resident: $4.00 Resident: $20.00 Resident: $35.00
Soccer Field Non-Resident: $6.00 Non-Resident: $30.00 Non-Resident: $50.00 550.00

Park use is on a first come, first served basis. Reservations are strongly encouraged and are REQUIRED by Sports
Leagues/Organizations (regardless if use is for organized practice or game play), for groups over 50, and any time a user
intends to bring inflatable play equipment into the park.

Any user who has made a reservation has priority over a user that has not made a reservation.
Residents must show proof of residency at time of reservation request.

Long-term rentals: Fees and other terms will be outlined in a separate Memorandum of Understanding.

Fee for Cancellation Processing. 50% of the total Rental fee or $35, whichever is less.

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Page 1 of 1

Park & Facility Rental Fee Schedule — Administrative Revision Nevermber16,20846 December, 2018
Agenda ltem D-4



Town of Discovery Bay

“A Community Services District”

PARKS AND RECREATION February 20, 2019
STAFF REPORT

Meeting Date

Prepared By: Mac Kaiser, Recreation Supervisor
Submitted By: Michael R. Davies, General Manager

Agenda Title

Board Member attendance and participation at the 2019 Annual California Parks & Recreation Conference in
Sacramento, March 21, 2019.

Recommended Action

Board Authorize Members of the Board of Directors, Parks and Recreation Standing Committee attendance and
participation at the Annual California Parks & Recreation Conference (CPRS) located in Sacramento, March 21, 2019.

Executive Summary

This year’'s Annual CPRS Conference is taking place in Sacramento, March 21, 2019. The Annual CPRS Conference
brings Parks and Recreation Professionals, Board Members, and exhibitors from across California together in a
collaborative and educational environment intended to become better informed on issues and trends facing Parks and
Recreation state-wide.

Pursuant to Government Code 8§861047(e) (5), the Board must previously authorize a Board member’s presence at a
training program. The Board Member must also deliver a written report at the next available meeting concerning the
training session(s) attended. Pursuant to this section, Board Members are permitted a stipend for attending this
conference.

Costs for registration, activities, and mileage are listed below:

e Registration — Daily Rate (includes lunch & admission to the exhibition hall) - $425

R/T Mileage/Parking: Approximately $100

This action authorizes members of the Board of Directors assigned to the Park & Recreation Standing Committee
attendance at the CPRS Annual Conference.

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item

None

Attachments

CPRS-Conference-Brochure 2019.

AGENDA ITEM: D-5


Cinderella
Stamp


Memorandum of Understanding
Between
The Town of Discovery Bay CSD, California
and the
River Otters Parent Booster Club

| Purpose

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into by and between the Town of
Discovery Bay (“Town”) and the River Otters Parent Booster Club (“ROPBC”). The purpose of
this MOU is to establish the framework of cooperation between the Town and the ROPBC for
the development and operation of a summer youth swim team program. Cooperation is in the
interest of both parties because it would enable both parties to fulfill their common missions and
goals, in the development of a Community-wide, family-friendly summer youth swim team
program benefiting the residents of the Town of Discovery Bay.

Whereas, the Property is owned by and under the jurisdiction of the Town, and

Whereas, the Town has authority to operate and administer the property under its jurisdiction for
the use and enjoyment of the public, including for recreation purposes, and

Whereas, the Town and the ROPBC President are authorized to enter into this MOU,

Now, therefore in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, the
Town and the ROPBC mutually agree as follows:

A. Town Responsibilities

1. Provide use of the Discovery Bay Community Center Pool, along with access to a pre-
designated portion of the Tuff Shed equipment building during the time period between
April 1 and July 31 and/or as mutually agreed to each year in September.

2. Provide administrative support tasks that include; promotion of the River Otters Swim
Team in the Town’s “Winter/Spring” Recreation Guide, administration and processing of
all registration fees, and updating and printing all participant registration packets in
coordination with ROPBC.

3. Process each season’s coaching staff as 1099 contractors through the Town’s payroll
system with seasonal contract amounts determined by ROPBC. Seasonal coaching
contract amounts shall not at any time exceed total gross registrations collected.

4. The Town shall collect, as a facility use fee, 20% from the total gross registrations

collected. Any participant registrations waived by ROPBC shall be counted as a fully
paid registration for the purpose of calculating the 20% facility use fee.

Agenda ltem D-6



5.

The total remaining gross revenues collected, minus all coaching staff costs, and
including any additional direct costs incurred by the Town related to the operation of the
aqguatic facility and agreed to in this MOU, will be paid to the ROPBC following a Board
of Directors meeting in May of each year.

B. ROPBC Responsibilities

1.

Responsibility for all direct tasks related to the successful operation of a youth summer
swim team program that includes, but not limited to: fundraising; purchasing swim team
uniforms; providing transportation to away meets; participant equipment such as swim
caps, goggles, swim fins, and various team and individual awards; and the scheduling
and supervision of various family activities, special events, and/or team related
functions.

Coordination with the Town by September of each proceeding year, the dates, days, and
times of use during the time period between April 1 and July 31 and/or as mutually
agreed to each year.

Provide to the Town by November 1% of each year, updated information for inclusion into
the Town’s annual “Winter/Spring” Recreation Guide.

Provide to the Town by February 15" of each year, updates and/or changes to Town
provided participant registration packets for distribution at the March Pre-season parents
meeting.

The selection and negotiation of annual contract amounts of each season’s coaching
staff, ensuring that all coaches have a valid American Red Cross Lifeguarding
Certification and CPR/First Aide Certification, and forwarding all this information by
March 1% to the Town for processing as 1099 contractors.

Coordination with Town ensuring that no participants are allowed to begin practice
without all required documentation complete and all fees paid in full.

Regular daily supervision, including if necessary, implementing disciplinary action with
any participants, and/or non-participating family members, parents/guardians failing to
abide by the Town’s Park and Recreation Activity Code of Conduct.

Daily pick up of all trash, including lost and found items, in and around the pool area,
parent observation areas, including restrooms and common areas within the Community
Center utilized by the swim team. These areas shall be left in a neat and orderly
condition.

After a one (1) verbal and one (1) written warning of failure to abide by the terms of
seven (7) and/or eight (8) above, ROPBC shall reimburse Town for all costs associated
with obtaining compliance. Such costs may include the Town providing additional
staffing and supervision, cleaning services, and/or repairing damages to facility and/or
equipment incurred by the use of the swim team during the course of the season.

Agenda ltem D-6



10.

11.

12.

Shared responsibility for the removal and replacement of lane lines and/or pool covers in
coordination with Town related aquatic activities and events throughout the season.

As a booster club of the Town’s swim team, any team equipment purchased by the
ROPBC for use by the River Otters Swim Team shall be deemed the property of the
Town. The equipment shall be stored in a designated area as determined by the Town.
Equipment includes, but is not limited to popups, starting blocks, and kick boards. As
storage space is limited, any equipment to be stored must first be approved by the
Town.

ROPBC understands that the Discovery Bay pool is an older facility, and pool equipment
failure or other conditions requiring short-term or long-term closure is possible at any
time throughout the course of the season. In the event of such closure, the Town will
assist the ROPBC, to the extent practical and possible, in locating an alternate facility;
however, the Town does not guarantee the availability of such a facility. The Town shall
not be liable to ROPBC for any loss of use or any other damages whatsoever resulting
from pool closure. All costs related to the use of an alternate facility shall be the
responsibility of ROPBC and not the Town. The Town shall reimburse ROPBC for any
daily loss of use on a pro-rata basis.

General Provisions:

A. Details for implementation of the provisions of the MOU that are not specified herein
may be specified at a later, appropriate time in written addenda to the MOU, signed
by both Parties. Upon execution, the addenda shall automatically be incorporated
into this MOU.

B. This MOU shall be governed by the applicable laws of California. Should any
provision of the MOU be found void or unenforceable, it shall be severable from the
rest of the MOU and the remaining term shall be enforced as if the unenforceable
term had not existed.

C. Except as specifically provided in this MOU, nothing in this MOU shall be construed
as giving either ROPBC or the Town the right or ability to bind the other and nothing
in this MOU shall be construed to create a joint liability with regard to, or as a result
of, the activities undertaken by either Party, their employees, officers and/or agents,
to implement this MOU. All employees, officers and/or agents of a Party shall remain
employees, officers and/or agents of that Party and shall be subject to the laws,
procedures, rules and policies governing that Party’s employees, officers and/or
agents.

D. Neither Party may assign any rights or obligations granted to it by this MOU to a third
party without prior approval of the other Party.

Agenda ltem D-6



J.

Neither Party waives any of the privileges and immunities from liability, exception
from laws, ordinances, and rules, or any pension, relief, disability, workers’
compensation, and/or other benefits that it would otherwise have.

This MOU shall not affect any existing agreements between the Parties, or between
a Party and third parties.

The Town agrees to protect, hold harmless, indemnify and defend ROPBC, its
employees, officers and/or agents against any and all clams for injury or damage to
persons or property resulting from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the
Town, its employees, officers and/or agents arising from and in connection with the
Town’s implementation of this MOU. ROPBC agrees to protect, hold harmless,
indemnify and defend the Town, its employees, officers and/or agents against any
and all claims for injury or damage to persons or property resulting from the sole
negligence or willful misconduct of ROPBC, its employees, officers and/or agents
arising from and in connection with ROPBC’s implementation of this MOU.

Each Party shall be responsible for its own costs incurred in implementing this MOU.
This MOU contains the complete agreement of ROPBC and the Town in regards to
the subject matter of this MOU and there are no other agreements, oral or written,

except as are included in the terms of this MOU.

This MOU shall be deemed to have been drafted by both Parties.

Term, Modification, Termination

A. This MOU shall become effective when signed by authorized representative of the

Town and ROPBC. It shall remain in effect until terminated by one or both of the
Parties.

B. This MOU may be modified by written mutual agreement of the Parties.

C. Either Party may terminate this MOU thirty (30) days in writing after giving notice to
the other Party, or the Parties may terminate this MOU at any time by mutual
agreement. Upon termination of this MOU, the indemnity provisions shall remain in
effect until the applicable statute of limitations has expired on any possible pending
claims and until a final resolution is reached with regard to any claims that may have
arisen as a result of and during the effective dates of this MOU.

Signatures:
Town of Discovery Bay CSD River Otters Parent Booster Club
Michael R. Davies, General Manager Richard Pierce, ROPBC President

Agenda ltem D-6



2019 River Otters Budget Proposal:
Estimated Total Swimmers: 100 @ $400/each = $40,000

[Town recovers a 20% Administrative Overhead expense on the total number of
swimmers both paid and River Otters Board comps.] 20% of $40,000 = $8,000

Estimated Total Revenue $32,000

Estimated Coaching Staff Seasonal Expenses:

Heidi McMillan $13,000
Hannah Murray $ 3,000
Emma Brownrigg $ 3,000
Stephanie Vosicka $ 2,400
Estimated DOJ Expenses:
Heidi McMillan $49
Hannah Murray $49

Emma Brownrigg $49
Stephanie Vosicka  $49

Total Revenue received is $32,000 less expenses $21,596 = $10,404

Town will make the check payable to “Discovery Bay River Otters Booster Club”
In the amount of $10,404**

River Otters Parents Booster Club proposal for loss of Town Pool is as follows:
Estimated expense of rental of Freedom High School Pool is $5,200. Proposal is for
Town to pay the approximate $5,200 from Town’s $8,000 Administrative Overhead Fee
leaving Town $2,800

** See next page

Agenda ltem D-6



** Typical sample of expenses River Otters Parents Booster Club incur:

Car decals $ 236
Swim caps $1,045
Swim meet awards $ 354
Swimmer t-shirts $ 887
Live Scan $ 140
Sponsor Banners $ 140
Swim meet awards $ 376
EZ UP customization $ 297
Temp Tattoos $ 137
Banquet Awards $ 644
Banquet Awards $ 851
Swim League dues $ 300
Host meet in Tracy $1,247
Host meet in Turlock $ 357
Banquet Awards $ 309
Coaches/Board gifts acknowledgement $ 665
Banquet food $ 409
Meet of Champions dinner $ 170
Banquet Face painter $ 325
Banquet Awards $ 160
Banquet swimmer/sponsor food $1,224
Bangquet game truck $ 475
Total $10,748

Agenda ltem D-6



